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2002 2001
o 10,417 8,913
BRAn 5,562 7,574
ENCE Rl 1.54% 4.25%
550 A o L BE 1.47% 1.64%
FHERSTRBREILE 136.46% 51.97%
nEsn 9,663 8,794
ERE S 8,405 7391
- oF ] 754 619
ﬁ.:ﬁjgﬂi 11.58% E.11%
B¥H A 119 111
B R A 195 154
ey e 3 1.23% 1.32%
PHEHEREELE 17.36% 19.32%
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2002 2001
Total Assats 1,041.7 B91.3
Loans Dutstanding &896.2 7578
kaon-performing Asset Ratia 1.54% 4.15%
Bpzeree for Credit Losses Ratio 1.42% 1.64%
Reserve for Credit Losses to Mon-performing Loans 136, 46% 91.97%
Total Liabilities 966.3 B29.4
Bonds Outstarding 860.5 FEL
Total {wner's Equity 75.4 1.4
Capital Adeguacy Ratio 11.58% B.131%
et Frofi 11.9 11.1
Mt Infesnash [noome 19.5 15.4
Retum on Average Assets 1.13% 1.32%
Retum on Average Owner's Equity 17.16% 19.32%

Unit: in billions of RMB, unless otherwise specified.
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In 2002, under the leadership of the State Council and with the support of the Board of Supervisors
and relevant autharities, including the People®s Bank of China ("PBOC’), State Development Planning
Commission, the Ministry of Finance (WO0F'), China Development Bank (the "Bank” or "CDB") has
surpassed its goals in supporting the Government's policy objectives of expanding domestic demand
and restructuring the financial sector of the Chinese economy, adapting to the emerging competitive
emvironment, and despening structural reform, Qur achisvements demonstrate that we continue to
fulfil our mission of running the bank consistent with intemational best practices, establishing an

efficient financing mechanism for capital investment”, and supporting China’s economic development,

This record of achievement is largely supported by our efforts to transform the Bank’s orgamzation
structure and operational processes by drawing on the practices of leading global banks. In this regard,
CDB has achieved a number of important milestones in connection with our phasad plan of implementing
intemational best practices In operational areas — such as organizational desian, corporate govemance,
risk management, credit administration, asset-liability management, and information technology,
We monitor the progress of this transformation principally through key operational performance
indicators, consistent with leading global banks. During 2002, we exceeded our targets, established

at the beginning of the year, relative to many of these key operational performance indicators.

Most notably, the growth of our credit business and the improwement in the quality of our assets
surpassed our chjectives, At vear-end, our total assets and credit assets amounted to BME 1,041.7
billion and RME 896.2 billion, respectively. Growth rates in these balances over the corresponding
amounts in the prior year of 16.9% and 18.3%, reflect the balanced development of our lending

activities. It is important to note that this growth was achieved without sacrificing our mandated

* The hinesee gowerivrnasl bes reade brvedd comaritrsents 1o sdoranes el i nasy aees, fncluding the exsting mechansn f Losding stonimmic develacrmen,
srujecrs. The arineipal ratorms cbiiective i this area i 1o promvle & shil from government directed Tunding L 0te ased on mackel fonces,




focus on supporting development in six key industries and targeted geographic regions. Moreaver,
our non-performing loan ratio at year-end reached a remarkable 1.78%, down by 2.18 percentage
paoints from the beginning of the year. Our non-performing loan ratio is determined based on the
PROC five-category classification framework, which is consistent with that used by leading global

banks.

Consistent with the growing trend of improved transparency in the financial reporting of leading
global companies, we have prepared our financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards. Further, in an effort to reinforce public confidence in the financial
stability of the Bank, we engaged one of the leading global accounting firms to awdit our financial
statements in accordance with International Auditing Standards for the past three years, We are

proud to present these financial statements publicly for the first time with this annual report.

Our accomplishments are impressive and are the result of the tireles devotion of our staff. | wish

to share my sense of pride in our tremendous achievernents with all CD8 staff.
Sustained Trend of Strong Financial Performance

In 2002, the momentum of our profit growth continued, Eamings based on International Financial
Reporting Standards grew from PBME 11.1 billion in 2001 to BMB 11.9 billien in the current year,
While our eamings track record 15 impressive by itself, the quality of our earmings is supported through
comparison b globally recognized benchmarks for financial performance in several areas. In addition,
the increases in our eamings are the result of the balanced arowth i our core credit activities, which

will support the suetainability of our earmings in the lomger-term.

Disciplined Growth and Improving Asset Quality

Despite the rapid growth in our credit activities, we have intensified our unyielding efforts to improve
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asset quality, The record low level of our HPL ratio at the end of 2002 s largely attributable to a
disciplined application of our more focused underwriting standards and loan monitoning procedures.
Further, the establishment of an independant credit rsk management department this vear 15 intendad
b ensure consistent implementation of our policies in these areas. Asset quality is also supported
by our rigorous collection efforts, The recovery rates of principal and interest excesded 100% during

the vear, reflecting our dilfgence in collecting principal and inberest owed from prior periods.
Operational Restructuring

In 2002, we continued to pursue an operational restructuring that is intended to position the Bank
for sustained commercial viability in a rapidly changing environment. We recognize that the continued
level of our performance and relevance to our constituents is dependent upon the adoption of
intemational standards of best practice across a range of functions. The adeption of these practices
will enable us to effectively meet the competitive and risk management challenges that will emerge

over the coming years relative to China's accession to the WTO,

Working with a recognized global consulting firm, we have commenced an initiative to implement
international standards of best practice and performance measurement in key operational areas

referred to previoasly, and we have already passed a number of important milestones in this regard.
Balancing our Core Objectives to Maximize our Potential

Ouwr accomplishments in 2002 reflect a commitment ta balancing our core responsibility to support
the government's infrastructure development objectives and the need to address the emerging
commercial realities of the PRC economy, We recognize that maximizing our capacity and flexibility
o finance public projects over the long-term i ultimately dependent on our creating a profitable
franchize and the related market confidence that will enable us to expand our funding sowrces,
Our demonstrated commitment to implementing international standards of best practice, including

performance benchmarks, in operational areas will create the cornerstone, around which to build

for the future. Further, we are committed to combining our unique access to sovereign credit and




market-oriented practices to drive reforms in the public finance sector, We believe that our policy
lending objectives and the commercial imperatives related to long-term viability are not mutwally
exclusive, rather they are mutwally suppartive. Both our accomplishments in 2002 and our outlook

for the future support this view,
Leveraging a Shared Vision for Success

The one aspect of our performance that | find most fulfilling is the sense of common purpose that
has developed throughout our organization. The intensity of our collective effort o proceed confidently
and expeditiously with a transformation that will position us to maintain ouwr position as a lynchpin
to continued economic development in the PRC has enabled us to effect change focused on both
our customers and the local capital markets. We have developed a true sense of our clients’ needs
and developed products to help them to more efficiently manage their projects, leveraging the benefit
to the PRLC economy as a whole, We have also pioneered practices, such as loan syndication and

participation, which will promote the development of the China's financial senices industry,

Further, our disciplined implementation of a rigorous underwriting and credit rating processes is
contributing to the emergence of a credit culture in the local lending markets that is focused on
the fundamentals of the borrower as the primary source of re-payment, consistent with the practices
of leading global banks, In addition, all of ouwr lending and financing activities are now subject to
broad mechamisms of credit and misk control, creating credit and financing structures that address
loavg-term risk and protect the vability of our franchise. Continued progress i this area will involve
increased levels of cooperation with other banks in the PREC and we embrace this opportunity to
work together for the benefit of our economy. Perbaps most importantly, though, we have demomstrated
that an indigenous PRC bank can achieve international standards of performance while fulfilling its

impartant social responsibilities.
The Future

A5 we look to the future, | am optimistic. The robust growth of the Chinese economy continues
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unabated, with an increase of 7-8 % in the past five years and 3% in 2002, Such economic trends
create tremendous demand for the development of infrastructure and ather public projects; which,
in turn, provides substantial potential for our future growith. In light of the favourable economic
trends, the momentum of cur operational transformation and the special role that we play in the
development of China’s economy, | believe that we are uniquely positicned to leverage this potential

and provide even greater levels of support for government economic prioritées in the future.

CHEN YUAN

GOVERNOR
CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ERFARTHARAAZLT
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China Development Bank is
committed to building an effective

corporate governance structure,
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| %% SUPERVISORY BOARD

BERFRAGEECEEERE. HESRLE AREARMEARFEETALRLR.
EEEREIAXNEE. DRcETE-—& EF-% IHAAETE DHBRAMER
B, PEARES. BRAREN. STHELFE S RRECRTHE.

China's State Council appoints the Board of Supervisors (the Board’) to represent its interest
in the Bank. In this regard, the Board is responsible for supervising and monitoring the
strategy, management and operations of CDB. The Board consists of a chairman, one
supervisor and several staff members. It also includes one representative each from the
Ministry of Finance, PBOC (the central bank), China Development Bank and a public

accounting firm, all of whom serve on a part time basis.

' EEMAERS INTERNATIONAL ADVISORY COUNCIL |

SEARBHTFINEIARLTAGROERS, ENEARERERANTRNNE
tifEEMHEL NEFALATHEREEAATERARAFESEORY. #m
EARMOSEGRERA LR, BN ROgRsd HiBlEEE. SRALERH
AHAL DEEHESWTH ZEEAL ZEANLBNERTHESE  ERK
L XEEVHEHREREREIRGAT  FAERELE,

WMZFICAEELFERTAXRFEHTEAERAZACI ARG, EXCUME
FUEEHE OXAFEETHAFERNERER SREFESEANPEAEFNER. =
WHEPAEFRIRIFESLTSENEHHRRER. BXUSFFHERER,
mE{AEER=RTn Rz REL T FEHHAN R,
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Qur International Advisory Council (the "Council"} was established in March 1999 to
provide the Board and senior management with meaningful insights into bank strategy
and management based on their experiences as senior govemment policy makers or
global business leaders, Among the Council’s 14 distinguished members are many well
recoanised individuals, such as Dr, Henry A, Rissinger, former Secretary of State of the
United Stabes; mMr. Ramond Barre, former French Premier and the Mayor of Lyon; and

Mr. Paul Volcker, former Chairman of United States Federal Reserve System.

On 15 October 2002, the Coumcil corvened its 4th annual meeting in Beijing. The topics
addressed included the ongoévg transformation strategy of COB and the impact of global
economic trends on the development of China's economy and the role of CDEB. As these
matters bear fundamentally on the future economic development of the PRC, President
Jiang Zemin addressed the Council Lo communicate his views, Given the diversity of
the respective backgrounds of the Council members, a number of different perspectives
were considered. At the conclusion of the meeting, though, clear consensus was achieved
in & number of critical areas that formed the basis of meaningful recommendations to

management,

ANNUAL REPORT 20T
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MElEiT INTERNAL AUDIT |
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Xii, E—ATREEXANEMEN, A ASREET SLAREERE. FONE-FREE
SARMEN RELERSNFRBETAAK T SAEARERTT A%, Ty TRATY
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The Intemal Auwdit Department [(TAD") has continued to play a significant role in Increasing awarensss
of the significance of an effective control environment throughout our organization. Through these
efforts, as well a8 a control testing program focused on improving the effectivensss of controls, 1AD
has helped o strengthen the control processes of the Bank. In 2002, for example, 4D complebed a
review of certain of the Bank's loans to customers at most branches. The focus of the review was
on assessing asset quality and the effectiveness of the credit administration process. IAD provided
branch management with a number of useful suggestions for improving the credit administration
process. This review not only enhanced the effectivensss of the credit administration process at
the branches, but alse served to provide the branch personnel with practical training in this area.
In addition, based on the results of this review, |AD was able to conclude that the Bank's credits
were properly graded. We recognize that an effective control emvironment 15 a critical element of

the foundation on which te build cur future growth.

In 2003, we will re-structure [AD to provide for complete independence from our branches, consistent
with international best practices. The re-orgamization will involve centralising the internal audit
function under the direct control and superasion of the Head Office as well a5 the hinng of additional
experienced auditors.,

ANNUAL REPORT 2002 | /9
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STRATEGY AND OPERATIONAL RESTRUCTURING INITIATIVES

HINMEREE, (Eh0hEIES
HiRiT. RANERNEENR
. TR E i D
T,

Our strategy , as the principal
policy bank in China, is to fulfill
our social responsibilities and
manage our bank in accordance
with market principles and
international best practices.
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When CDE was established in 1994, our mandate was to foster economic development in the PRC
through the financing of key infrastructure projects. During the last decade, our economy has gone
through a period of rapid growth and change. Both the scope and speed of this change in the financial

27 | ANKUAL REPORT 2002



services sector have been especially dramatic. Most significantly, as the government has liberalised
the regulatory underpinning of this important sector of our economy, new fimancial products have
eviolved to meet the increasinaly sophisticated demands of consumers, businesses and local sovernments.
Further intensity of this change will increase over the coming years, as the PRC implements its
obligation under the WTO agreements, Ameng other things, foreign banks will compete in our local
markets. This will increase what it already a spirited level of competition amang the growing local

banks.

While we remain committed to our original mandate, the environment in which we cperate has
become more complex and continues to eviodwe, In this regard, we are uniquely positioned to leverage
the soversign credit of the Govemment to maintain the capacity and flexibility to support the financing
meeds of long-term infrastrocture projects over the next decade. This Mexibility will also enable us
to intreduce market-oriented practioes into the funding mechanism for public finance to improve
efficiency and maximize the impact on the development of the Chinese economy. Owr strategy has

been refined to reflect the new economic reality.

We will reinforce our position as the principal policy bank in China, fulfilling our social responsbilities
and supporting government policy chjectives. Embracing market principles and intemational best
practices, we will leverage our unigue relationship with the Govermment and sur sustained record
of improving financial performance to achieve a level of competitiveness that will sustain our franchise
through this period of economic change. While maintaining the quality of our financial performance,
we will implement standards in our management practices, product development, staff proficiency
andl logistics that are consistant with to those of leading global nstitutions, Qur aim is to make CDB

a wiorld -class bank.

While our most recent efforts have been focused on the improvement of asset quality and financial
results, we recognise the need to restructure our operations to ensure long-term viability. Under
the Warld Bank Techmical Assistant Program, we engaged intemational consultants to assist in our

ongoing efforts to transform our organisational structure, strengthen ouwr risk management capabilities

ANNUAL REPORT 20T ! 23
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and improve our operating practices. In connection with this endeavour, the following represent

the mare significant initiatives undertaken in 2002,

AWNE. GARRERLEE
CLEARLY DEFINE THE ROLE OF FRONT, MIDDLE AND BACK OFFICES

EAASEUTAAES . AWBLLSHREOHERES. ROFLEENDEERTE, &0
e GERTESAERTE, HEBRETFEE. LENERE. FEBTRTREES,
EEFRE®. i SEEANHAEEZHEE, bt BONCTEHOBIRE =40
RHEENZEARKEY TEATINAST, #-SRRTEHTUNGLRERKT. RNWAT &
BERARANE)) ERLLEEREENEAERET,

In order to create a more robust risk management structure and focus our organisation structure on
achieving our business objectives, we clarified distinctions among and more clearly defined the scope
of front, middle and back offices activities, The front office consists of customer-facing and business
development activities, the middle office comprises our risk management areas, and the back office
includes |AD, accounting, IT and other support functions. In addition, we made further changes to
our organisation structure by streamlining the existing departmental functions. For example, we
reallocated industry specialisation responsibilities among our three project appraisal departments
to better serve the specialised needs of our customers and more effectively manage the unique risks
of the related credits. We also established new departments to support our current corporate strategy,

including the Business Development Department and the Credit Risk Management Department.,

mEREAEEE
THE STRENGTHENING OF CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

ETERFERGRERIREANLEHA RARERABRERARETEEAIARERIE. X
RERRNAGTHEREREERT2H0N, EHEVRRIARLEERNSGE. BNEHE
RTEEEFANAREDLR, BB TRFRERR, BERTAYHEREFAE~LSE
LE ek
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Given the inherently large size of our individual credit exposures, it is critical that we establish clear
policies for monitoring asset quality and managing credit risk, Althowgh our credit administration
function has proven to be effective in the past, we reviewed this process and the related risk
manazement function to assess whether our current practices will meet future bisiness demands.
A5 a result, we established a credit risk management department to further enhance the independent

monitoring of our lending process and our loan portfolio.

BEMEEHRME
ENHANCEMENT OF THE FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING FUNCTION

MEANETHRNERTRATEENREF—AAREEEN AR, SEFREOGHET AN
FBNMEFRANTLAN, RATHSSTSEATENER. FnEf—REGneEs, w002
FENECTHEAINHEEES SEMEF=FLEEER. HRFLRE, FERAGSESEY
BAHEL, BNERETTHSEUHNE, RABROSSTLTMNEERGRGREE, A%
ERMESTANERE ERGRLENBEERGE, RNESFARHERCARETLH
Wit BECHABEAE, EEMRESD. m8 EOAGENEE, W003ERNBENTR
LHRARERRNTE BHELHRNSHVEHNEST. EFHATEH EFRERMEEHT
FHRAERENEREERER,

The finance and accounting area is an important support function to our senior management in decision-
making. This department consists of a team of qualified professionals, striving to raise the level of
the Bank's financial management capabilities to those of the leading global banks, In 2002, we further
enhanced our budgeting function, redefined the various level of expense approval authonity as well
as streamilined the approval process. Through the assistance of a well-recognised intemational accounting
firm, we reviewed our financial and accounting policies and made appropriate modifications to ensure
consistency with changing global standards. [n order to measure the Bank's profitability by department,
product and customer, we initiated the design of a management accounting system that fits our business
and the scale of CDB, In 2003, we plan to implement this management accounting system to further
enhance the capability of the finance and accounting function as a key suppart to the Bank's decision makers.,
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RRESRBFEES
DEVELOPMENT OF AN ASSET-LIABILITY MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

AREEERNEEAERENEENY. HEhEst AR RENRENEFES NEEHTE
HR%, 000F, BONAETHENEDEARARE SANEEENTARAXEAREE, HER
EERSHENRRTNEE. EHEESERTE~AHTENS, ANF@UCCESHIELHLR.

Risk management i an integral part of our efforts to improve our operational processes. During
2002, we enhanced our capability in managing interest rate and liguidity risks, both of which will
become increasingly complex as the country's economic system is gradually deregulated. In this regard,
the Bank's senfor management has analysed issues related to asset-liability management "ALM") on
a more regular basis. Palicies and parameters on how to manitor and manage interest rate and liquidity
risks have been formulated. In the meantime, preparation for the creation of an ALM function is
under way, We hope to make significant progress in this area during 2003,

BREHARENRANENE DL
CEMTRALISATION OF THE IT SYSTEM AND INFORMATION DATA

ATERNPEEWAGTENLNAIE. CEEAELTHESELR. BNEEPTARAOA
A Bh UNEBBHAHEERE, BNEEEEAMEIOMBERFHEERS THHE
S ERLRAEHASHELOEENEANEMETLAER,. BNNBGREREA#NITER, X1
EEEENADLEE,

Our IT infrastructure will have to develop rapidly in order to support our restructuring efforts. We
have focused significant levels of management attention and resources on enhancing the capabilities
and increasing the capacity of owr T infrastructure, In this regard, we have made meaningful progress
towards the establishment of an [T processing center that will centralise our core systems capabilities
and information data. We plan o continue significant progress towards our goal of back office

automation using the most advanced technology during 2003,
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We understand that our reform initiatives are ambitious, but our direction is clear, The achievement
of significant milestones in many areas demonstrates beth our commitments te change and tangible
progress, We hope to substantially complete our restructuring plan over the next bwo vears, These
changes will position CDB as one of the most efficient and well-managed banks in the PRC for the

foreweeable future,
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BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

ERFEETNEXEFARENT
BEREFREEEREERER R
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The primary goal of China De-
velopment Bank i to finance China's
economic development through the
extension of direct and indirect
finance to projects and customers
in support of this objective,
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E&Ek & LENDING BUSINESS

EHEFNEHEREIHE SUPPORTING THE GOVERNMENT DEVELOPMENT PLAN |
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Qur lending business is closely aligned with the Government's development plan, which in 2002
mandated a continued foous on increasing national consumption and providing an adeguate money
supply throush prodent monetary policies, In this regard, a sustained GDP growth rate in the 8% range
will require continued infrastructure investments in key projects, fooused on infrastructure, basic

industries and pillar industries.

During 2002, total funding by CDB alone in infrastructure investments accounted for two-thirds of
total funding by domestic banks in China. In addition, we invested a total of RMB 33.0 billion in 43
of the 76 key projects approved by the State Development Flanning Commission. We have also provided

additional funding to 177 projects supported by treasury bonds.
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" B#% M OUR LENDING RESULTS

HINZER, RSB SI6IETART, S20016M£18 3%, 20024, BN H&R5T
TR AR, B, NGZLHAETREY. 10ICL SRR THYE. FRETMIMIETAET.
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HEBESR,
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HAXGUHEREHTEXNEAR, 20024 B 6RNAEENEARTE,

At the end of 2002, our total loans outstanding were RMB 896,12 billion, representing an increase of
18.3% over 2001, Hew loans totalling RME 235.7 billion were made in 2002, of which BRMB 219.6 billion
were denominated in domestic currency and RMB 16.1 billion were denominated in eguivalent US

dollars. Project commitments im the amount of RMB 334.2 billion were extenced during 2002,

Foreign currency loans, which represent approximately £.2% of our outstanding loans, are generally
provided for the acguisition, introduction and implementation of foreign technology, materials,
equipment, and advisory services related to key projects. These loans are normally designed to meet

specific medium- and long-term capital financing requirements.

Consistent with our strategy, CDBs lending activities have been focused on six key industries —
pawer, road construction, railway, urban infrastructure, petrochemical and telecommumications.
These industries provide pillars of support for broader economic development across China. In the
last decade, COB has contributed enormously to the development of these six industries as over 21.6%

of our total funding was directed to them.
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| WEALE LOAN SYNDICATIONS
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Loan syndications, which were introduced by us in 2004, have proven to be an effective nsk management
tool for COB. This activity not only helped the Bank diversify specific credit concentrations, but alsa
provided for the efficient pooling of funding resources to increase available funds for project finance
activities i the economy. Our imitiation of the loan symsdication business has reinforced our role as
the leading policy bank in China. In 2002, CDB served as the lead syndicator on two project finance

syndications, totalling RMB 79.8 billion.

EEREEE LOAN PARTICIPATION

W0IE6A A, PERAREFELESRRSANAERERGLE ARFERGRATEE

ERAZHLEMRT, REERKLEFATHUENELEFHERERAR AENHTR
FEBEEOEDE. R, (RAERELEOEIRERTREEIELERTASIGER, A
HEFERTHSERBDIBEROLHE. Syt RARaRTHTATL,

FEWOIER, FTHEAERTHILTIITEREIIAER. £ WA T REHE.

On 28 June 2002, COB became the first bank in China to recelve approval to engage in the sale of
loan participations from the PBOC. Our loan participation business has enabled us o more precisely
manage our credit risk. In addition, it has demonstrated our leadership role in promoting the expansion
of policy lending by effectively increasing the aggregate funds available to support viable nfrastructure

projects in the economy, through working cooperatively with domestic commercial banks.

During 2002, we sold loan participations in 12 projects, totalling RME 1.2 billion, te commercial

banks, which represents a good beginning in this business.
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EATE KEY PROJECTS FINANCED BY CDB
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KEY PROJECTSFINANCEDBYCDB B * o B

The Shanghai Magnetic levitated Train Line "MAGLEV Line") is the world's first commercialized high-
speed magnetic levitated transportation system. The whole MAGLEY Line runs fior 30 kilometers from
the Longyanglu Station in Shanghal to Pudong Intermational Alrport. It has two tracks, and the train
runs both ways with a designed maximum speed of 430 km/h. The project included the construction
of two stations, two traction substations, one operation control center and the purchase of train
cars. With a total investment of RMB 10.0 billion, of which RMB 2.83 billion was contributed by the
Bank, this is one of the largest development projects in China. It reflects the government's commitment
to the rapid development of one of China's most important commercial centers.

On 31 December 2002, the Shanghai MAGLEY Line completed its inaugural trip. Premier Zhu Rongfi
and Mr. Gerhard Schroder, Chancellor of Germany, officiated at the ribbon cutting ceremaony. The
successful completion of the MAGLEV Line demonstrates that China is capable of developing the most
advanced transportation systems in the world.
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YUEHAI RAILWAY PROJECT
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KEY PROJECTSFINANCEDBYCDB ® * I B

The Yuehai Railway Project is a key project in the continuing development of the national railway
system. It was commenced during the "minth-five-yvear period” by the Ministry of Raflway, with the
support of the Hainan and Guangdong Provincial Governments. The project is comprised of two
sections of rail lines and one train ferry to cross the Qiongzhou strait, a first in Chinese railroad

history.

The project was started on 30 August 1998, with total investment of RMB 4.5 billion. The Bank has
committed loans of RMB 2.2 billion to the project, of which RMB 1.8 billion has been disbursed.

The expansion of the Yuehai Railway is critical to the realization of the development objectives of
officials in Hainan provimoe. In addition, the Yuehai Railway project will play an important role in
promoting the economic development of the southwestern region of Guangdong province, which is
relatively under-developed.
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BHIEEE

SUZHOU INDUSTRIAL PARK
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KEY PROJECTS FINANCEDBYCDB & * & H

The development of Suzhou Industrial Park (the "Park”) is a major cooperative project between the
governments of China and Singapore. In the eight years since the completion of the Park, 1t has
emerged as one of the fastest growing and most competitive development zones in China,

Based on the success of the first phase development of 11 square kilometers of the Park, the
infrastructure construction of the second and third phases of the Park started in 2002. The construction
of these two phases will include of roads totaling 74 kilometers in length and an underground pipeline
system for awdliary supplies of water and gas, communication, heat and drainage. OF the total
investment of RMB 4.6 billion, the Bank has committed RME 2.0 billion of loans, By the end of 2002,
RMB 1.2 billien of loans have been funded.

The Park project is a good example of supporting our national policy objective of promoting cooperation
between government in areas of economic and technological development. It is also an important
step in reaching the State Council's target of making this project a world-class industrial park.
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KEY PROJECTS FINANCEDBYCDB & % ® H

The Chengdu Belt Expressway (the "CBE"), which transects the city of Chengdu, i one of the central
expressways of China's vast network. At 85 kilometers, it is the longest belt expressway in China
and its opening will provide an efficlent means of transportation to support the development of
Sichuan Province and the rest of China's western region.

The bituminous concrete road has six lanes and the designed speed is 100km/h and it passes through
11 districts (counties). The CBE connects all major roads leading to and away from Chengdu, forming
a radiating expressway network to Sichuan Province and beyond, making Chengdu an important
transportation hub in the western reglon. The project was started in May 1999 and completed on 16
December 2001. Of the RMB 4.3 billion investment, the Bank provided RMB 2.8 billion through loans,
accounting for 5% of the total.
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#& ¥ FUNDING SOURCES
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The Bank has developed a variety of sources, in both domestic and foreign capital markets, to fund
our lending portfolio. The principal source of our funding is bonds issued in domestic and forelgn
capital markets, which take advantage of CDB's reliability and cost advantage in effectively securitizing
sovereign credit. Other sources of funding include customer deposits, special Government tax and
budgetary programs, inter-bank money markets, and MoF advances.

| HARE®E DOMESTIC FUNDING
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CDB has become the second largest issuer of debt in China, following the MOF. In 2002, CDB 1ssued
debentures totalling RME 250.0 billion, representing an increase of 19% from the prior vear, of which

RMB 200.0 billion are long-term and RMEB 50,0 billion are short-term.

One of our principal objectives 15 to minimize CDB’s cost of fund. In 2002, we were able to reduce
our cost of funds by carefully designing the term structure of cur debt portfolio and ntroducing new
products to address emerging market needs, We also improved the matching of matunities betwesn
our assets and liabilities. As the economy in the PRC evolves and regulation & liberalised, other

technigues such as interest rate arbitrage will be explored to further reduce funding costs.

The PBOC also plays an important role in ensuring that adequate funding remains available to us,
In the ewent liguidity needs arise that are in excess of amounts that can be readily funded at an

acceptable cost elsewhere, the Bank is permitted to apply to the PEOC for short-term financing.
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hiCRk¥E FOREIGN CURRENCY FUNDING
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Funding of our foreign currency reguirements is undertaken largely through export credit facilities,
overseas bond issues, international syndicated loans, loans from foreign governments and the issuance
of debentures. As foreign currency loans are limited to the purchase of capital equipment from
overseas, the demand for foreign currency loans is relatively low. During 2002, for example, our

foreign currency financing amounted to only USD 500.0 million.

CD8 enjoys the highest international credit rating among domestic banks, primarily as a result of
the quality of our loan portfolio and our status as a government policy bank. Ratings of our long-
term debt provided by Standard & Poors and Japan Rating and Investment Information Company are
BBB and A, respectively, consistent with China's sovereign rating. Rating from Moody's is Baal, one
level lower than China's sovereign rating.
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FELATEEETFRRELEN
BOX1: CDB'S CONTRIBUTION TO THE CAPITAL MARKET DEVELOPMENT IN

L TERANEMAERT EETERTRATEEUARNESREA AR, KHLX
HENTTFETETHAREERNRE,

1008, ERARBRTEAHATBONNTRETO RSN ETAZRRT T HHLLE,
HERDTrERTETHAER. Wik, BEFEETAPEMSETSHE. FRAHNEN
flahd $ATHFT B . F—rHEEMHEERINHEMES, A HEEBETA
REHFUEE. F—TETIGES. I—TEOFXRSMERF. EEFEFEVET PREMES
fih. RETEFHEE. AR THESTHeGEM.

PEHARSTHEEMLTVENR ANANERFESET R ERNAGH, REEHS
BHFHBNANET, AEEFERTUELNTEZLAEEARTH LA~&RANS| I ARE,
ETHPRERTHER.

As the largest policy bank in China, CDB 15 actively engaged in the domestic credit and secunities
markets and we are committed to contributing constructively to the growth of the capital

markets n China,

Beginning in 1998, together with a number of other domestic banks, CDB has led the way
boowards market-oriented reforms in the domestic capital markets. On & number of cccasions,
for example, CDB has playved the role of "first crab eater” in China's bond market, We were
also the first to introduce the long-term fixed or floating rate debentures, option-embedded
bonds, subordinated debts and strip bonds. All these new products helped to enrich market
offerings, meet customers” increasingly sophisticated demands, and improve the liguidity of

e domestic capital market.

The bond market in China is still on early stage of development, Therefore, rules and practices
are constantly being refined and standardisad, semilarly, & market mechanism and transaction
disciplines are eviolving. We strive to bring the products and practices that are used in well-

developed western markets to China and establish confidence in China's capital markets,
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HEft & BB & OTHER FINANCIAL SERVICES
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To assist our customers to more effectively manage their projects, we continue to explore other
products and services. Through our sucoessful lending business, we have developed a client portfolio
that includes the largest public projects in the PRC. ‘We believe that there are tremendous opportunities
to add value to the lending services that we provide to our clients. During 2002, we expanded a

number of service offerings to our clients that complement our core lending business,

- M &Mis FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES .

EHENREE, BONHERALEETSINEREAAEIRBS TRANAD, 20028, BEH
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In the past few years, our financial advisory services have proven to be a success in attracting and
retaining customers. In 2002, we expanded this service offering from the head office to certain
branches to benefit a broader range of our customers. During 2002, we signed 14 exclusive agreements
with local governments and large state-owned enterprises to provide financial advisory services,
related to lending commitments. These services resulted in RMB 17.4 billion of incremental lending

commitments and RME B5.0 billion in potential loan projects.

The city government of Beijing is preparing for the construction of the Olympic stadiums for the
2008 Olympic Games. We have been engaged by the Stadium Construction Committee to provide
financial advisory services and lending support on certain projects. Our efforts and contribution have
been well-recognisad.

#i$ %1 BOND UNDERWRITING
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We established our bond underwriting business when we received the license to underwrite corporate
bonds for our customers in 2000. In 2001, we acquired seats on the Shanghai and Shenzhen Stock
Exchanges to conduct bond-trading activities for ocur clients.

In 2002, our bond underwriting business grew steadily with total offerings reached RMEB 4.3 billion
for the year. We were the lead underwriter for three bond offerings — Guangdong Muclear Power
Group, Shenhua Group and Jiangsu Transportation Holdings, We were the co-lead underwriter for
five additional bond issuances, including China Three Gorges Corporation, Guangdong Mobile, State
Power, Beljing Capital Road Development Company and Chongging Infrastructure Investment.

| B&®®W FUND MANAGEMENT
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The Sino-Swiss Yenture Capital Fund Management Company, a co-operative venture between the
Chinese and Swiss governments was successfully established in June 2002, Its business objective is
to promote economic cooperation between China and Switzerland through managing the Sino-5wiss
Partnership Fund ("55PF7) and offering related advisory services. S5PF is the vehicle through which
Sino-Swiss cooperative infrastructure projects will be financed.

By the end of 2002, the first capital tranche of S5PF, in the amount of US517.6 million was fully

invested in 10 projects. Funding of the second capital tranche is currently in the process of being
approved.
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BOX2: BUILDING THE CREDIT CULTURE IN CHINA
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During the planned economy era in China, the concept of “credit” was rarely discussed among
banking staff. As China gradually made the transition to a market-based economy, the emerging
issue of non-performing loans served to focus attention on deficiencies in our credit culture,
Our coumtry has recognised that developing a lending culture which promotes the effective
identification, measurement and management of cradit misk 15 critical to the future development

for our financial seckor,

We first began the promaotion of credit awareness within our organisation by strengthening
our credit risk management process and providing traiming courses provided to our staff, We
also designed a credit scoring system intended to measure risk in & number of dimensions-
customer, gecgraphy and industry, When this credit scoring system was integrated inte our
underwriting process, we were committed to transparency and discussed credit scores with
our clients as a means to help them better understand the concept of credit risk and the
related implications for individual borrowers. Since opening the dialogue with our customers
in this area, we have noted that many of them have focised on improving their credit scores,
We believe that through initiatives like this, working cooperatively with other domestic banks,
we can foster the development of a meaningful credit culture in China that will have a positive

effect on loan quality in the long-term.
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Sound risk management s key to
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As an integral part of our initiative to improve CDE's operational processes and strengthen our corporate
governance, we have enhanced CDB's policies and procedures to identify, monitor and manage risks
throughout the Bank. The effectiveness of these policies and procedures are dependent on a robust
risk management structure, constant communication, judgement, and a thorough knowledge of our
products, markets and customers.

Our approach to risk management has four principal components that include rsk assessment, control
processes, monitaring and communication. The risks to which the Bank is exposed will be managed

within established risk limits, which collectively, define our “risk appetite”.

Our risk management processes are focussed on timely identification and measurement. They are,
therefore, designed to be responsive to changes in market conditions and operational demands.
Further, our risk management processes are regularly reviewed and modified as our business develops,
and we constantly seek ways to improve their effectiveness.
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The Bank is broadly exposed to the following types of risk:

W Credit risk: Risk of loss resulting from the deterioration in the creditworthiness of

borrowers or counterparties.

B Market risk: Risk of losses resulting from changes in interest rates, prices or exchange

rates,

W Liquidity risk: Risk of being unable to fund the Bank's portfolio of assels at reasonable

rates and to meet redemption obligations related to our liabilities.

B Operating risk: Risk of loss through inadequacies or fallures in business processes,

projects or controls, and may be due to technology, staff, contracts and facilities.
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%A CREDIT RISK
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Credit risk is the largest source of risk for the Bank and is managed within an integrated framework

of credit policies, guidelines and processes.
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Since its implementation in 2001, the 12-grade asset classification system, reflecting refinements
to the PBOC’s credit grading guidelines, has proven to be an effective scheme that permits the Bank
to identify and monitor its emenging credit risk more precisely. This asset classification scheme also
formes the basis of the Bank's credit risk monitoring process and supports our undersriting and loan

pricing activities,

At the time of underwriting, each cradit application is analysed by experienced credit officers wha
consider a number of factors in the identification and assessment of credit risk. Each approved
borrower is assigned a rating, which is based on the assessment of all relevant factors including the
borrower®s financial condition and outlook, industry and economic conditions, market position, access
to capital and financing, and management strength. All ratings are reviewed annually, and more
frequently when conditions warrant. The assignment of ratings also takes into consideration facility
specific factors such as credit structuring, collateral and third party guarantees. These credit risk
assesament technigwss are used to assess the credit quality of the portfolia, so that deteriorating

exposures are guickly identified and appropriate remedial action is Laken.

The Bank makes provisions on its loans based on the S-grade loan classification guidelines established
by the PBOC, which are similar to those used by leading global banks, Under these guidelines, provisions
are made according to the loan grading of specific loans and take into account the Bank's net exposure
bo expected credit losses. The reserve level is determined after our analysis of individual credits,
our charge-off history and other relevant factors. In 2002, the Bank achieved its goal of reducing
the level of its non-performing loans ratio to below 3%. The goal was established in 2000 when the
Bank was determined to reduce its non-performing loans mtio to below 3% over a S-year pericd to
2005, Leveraging our outstanding results in 2001 and 2002, we have achieved this goal in only two
vears, At the end of 2002, CDB's non-performing loan ratio reached 1.78%, a decline of 2,18% from
the end of the prior year, There were 14 branches{departments) that reached the remarkable HPL

ratia of below 0.5% at the end of 2002,

ANMUAL HHFORT 2002

EE]




B B ¥ %M RISKMANAGEMENT

One of the key elements in the management of our credit sk is owr rigorous and disciplined collection
and recovery efforts, Because of the Bank's unique position as a palicy bank supporting lecal governments
in their regional development, CDB was able to ensure the repayment of the existing loans made to
these governmental borrowiers. In 2002, we collected 1002 of all interest and principal during the
year, raising the rate of our cumulative collection of principal and inberest due to 9E.4% at the end

of the year, which is 3.35 percentage points higher than at the end of 2001. Nine branches achieved

full collection in bath interest and principal on a cumidative basis.
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CDE faces risks resulting from market movements, related primarily to changes in interest and
exchange rates. In comparison to credit risk, COB's exposure to market risk is significantly less volatile,
Due to the state regulabed inberest rate regime in the domestic market, and the relatively low level

of non-RMB lending, the Bank's exposure to interest rate and currency fluctuations is relatively low.

Management seeks to minimise the Bank's exposures to interest rate and foreign exchange fluctuations
by matching the maturities of its loans and guarantees to labilities denominated in the same curencies,

We also facilitate fully hedged interest rate and currency swap transactions for our customers.

ANMUAL REFORT 2002 | §7



F B ¥ ™ RISKMANAGEMENT

b2

| FEAHEAE LIQUIDITY RISK
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We periodically perform a maturity analysis of the Bank's assets and liabilities to assess the needs
for additional funding and to determing the best source and cost of the funds required.

This analysis serves as the basis for our bank-wide management of liquidity risk.

Management of lguidity is also carried out in individual branches. The Bank requires its branches
to maintain a strong liquidity position and to manage the liquidity structure of their asets, liabilities
and commitments so that cash flows are appropriately balanced and all funding obligations are met

when due.

During 2002, by improving the matching of the daily funds received with the payments due, our
average daily liquidity position was reduced to RMB 3.4 billion from prior year’s RMB 3.7 billion, further

reducing our cost of funds.

As a long-term development Lender, the Bank holds sufficient Liquid assets to enable it to continue
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normal operations even in the unlikely event that it is unable to obtain new funds from the capital
markets for an extended period of time, However, should unexpected liquidity needs anse, the PEOC

15 authorized and has committed to provide short-temm Loans to the Bank,

H{EFM OPERATIOMAL RISK

HERTEAMRET. PHFREEMS. BEAEL, BEFAHzRIE—F. ST= HHS
MiRfERE SRbTELERR. RLERE, T2HP RS, ¢ FAET. YRRBLEEREEN
ATFRES ENAENE BN FRENEEEE. #TCRET - ENAMESESR,
JUARELESFESRAXEL,

A5 a large development bank, COB's total number of business transactions s relatively small and our
operational risk is lower than that of comparably sived commercial banks. However, like all financial
institutions, the Bank is exposed to many types of operational risk including the potential losses arising
from intemal activities or external events caused by breakdowns in information, communication,
physical safeguards, business continuity, supervision, transaction processing and the execution of
l=gal responsibilities. The Bank maintains a comprehensive system of intemal controls designed to
keep operational risk at appropriate levels. [AD has continued to play a stenificant role in bringine

awareness of controls to our staff as well as strengthening the control environment in the Bank.
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INFORMATION SYSTEMS
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Implementation of our planned
IT system will enable our business
processes to be fully automated
and our bank to develop a more
intense focus on customer service,
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A sophisticated information system that can support both the full range of a bank's products and
services and a robust intemal risk management function is essential to the successful execution of
our strategy. Currently we are in the process of enhancing our core banking systern and developing
a centralised data warehouse. One of the principal objectives of our current IT initiatives is to create

& straight-through process for the business operations of the Bank,

In 2002, COB passed several important milestones in the enhancement of our IT capabilities. These

include the following:

B roll-cut of the collateral management information system has been o a bank-wide basis to

support the Bank’s initiative in managing its credit risks;

B establishment of a secure mobile network platform has created a safe environment for mobils

office, online review and approval of loan applications;

B integration of the "Counter Moving Forward System”, including credit system enhancements, has
been completed, This has eliminated the need for certain cumbersome links between systems and

improved efficiency.

B successful connection of the Bank’s settlement system with the central clearing and settlement
system of the PROC, enabling the Bank to offer more canvenient and speedy settlement services to

OUF CUSTOMmErs,

In addition to improving the functionality of our information systems, we have also upgraded our

system security bank-wide.

In the area of network construction, the Bank has entered into cooperative agreements with two of
the largest telecom operators in China, China Telecom and China Netcom. Under these agreements,
the Bank will work together with these telecom operators in various areas of network construction

and maintenance, in connection with our development of a dedicated broadband network. The
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dedicated broadband network will improve the efficiency and security of communications between
the Head Office and the branches, as well as betweesn the Bank and external parties. In addition,
the availability of the dedicated broadband network will support the use of internet protocsl phone

and enhanced conference services, reducing our operating cost.

We also remain committed o owr medium and long term 1T development plans, which involve the
development of a new core banking system to support our plans for growth and anticipated changes
in the domestic capital markets. In this regard, we are in the process of assessing current and future
IT neads, as a basis for definimg our system requirements, The new system should enable the Bank
to provide “3A° services — “Anytime, Anywhere and At will” = to our customers, support comprehensive
risk monitoring and decision-making within the Bank, automate processing of the business activities,
and provide sufficient IT flexibility to enable the Bank effectively adapt to changing markets and
client needs. In shart, our goal & to be among the leading banks glabally in the use of information

technaloay.
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HUMAN RESOURCES
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Developing our people and providing
qualified staff to ensure the ach-
ievement of our business objectives
are our top human resources priorities.
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Human capital is our Bank's most important asset and it is through the dedicated efforts of our people
that we will be able to leverage the opportunities and overcome the challenges emerging in the
Chinese econamy. In this regard, a significant amount of management attention has been devobed

to implementing initfatives in 2002 designed to motivate and ensure the welfare of our people.

BEREIWE¥EAXTE STAFF COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

—RAETRE-MRERYHUENERLE. s8R ERenE . AE2-FHERTH
THWAKRE, FEERATHAZE, ANETTRARSER. AASBENSAEREDET
H#EErGAETECERER. HERAINERZIY ESATHEELTE.,

Like all leading global banks, CDB s committed to creating a well-balanced incentive systerm with
equitable benefits and compensation for our employees. Consistent with our successful results over
the past several vears, the average level of employee compensation was raised by management during
2002, At the same time, we have adjusted compensation levels to provide for meaningful differences
in terms of scope of responsibility and performance. In addition, to lessen the burden on our employees

who experience health problems, we have provided all employees with basic medical insurance

COVETREE.

AEHHW COMMUNICATIONS

HANHDTAREEREL A ARNY, IREAEEEAANREVRATER. MEEE. FH=EH
REMbARTCERLNA, 00F RNERIGELTFEEINE EREEAMEIE, ¢
NREATER, SEATRATEANE FEENESYUEEELS. CAETHEWNREIEENIH
FREF raznfEH.

Communication is an area in which we are focsed on continuous improvement. Given the scope of
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change in the Chinese economy and its impact on owr business and strategy, it i critical that our
employees clearly understand our evolving priorities and business objectives. Similarly, management
must have meamngful contact with all levels of our organization to maintain a practical perspective
on the iBsises facing the Bank. In 2002, we organised various surveys and perfonmance assessment
sessions among employees to solicit their perspectives on a range of issues. This exercise received
universal praise among our employees, who have a newly developed sense of empowerment that

will enable them to feel more connected to the Bank and our strategic objectives.

FEFEH STAFF EXCHANGE PROGRAM

20024, FHSEHARNTEERENTH SETIEAINEFRAANBABRENIHE &
FRFRTNE, FHTRATIE. B FHANEFRUAIRENTREL, 51 BE. M
ERSSERHNAATLIHRBERAAD A RFFABELHTHTE. REAGTEES
aEnE, S-S BNFENRTREFERAERASHSHR EMETRINE-~S
ENTE. ATASTHRETARARENEH. BOAEHXEATATHRARERAAI fERS
Bl

The Bank has continued to offer an exchange program that provides secondment opportunities with
our major clients and local governments to qualified CDB staff, In 2002, ten of our people, five from
the Head Office and five from among our branches participated in the program. AL the same time,
we have developed an “in-bound” secondment program that enables emplovees from our customers
to work in different areas of the Bank. During 2002, we supported 34 "in-bound” secondees. These
secondment programs foster a shared understanding of our objectives and the needs of our clients
that has enabled us to work with them. Also during 2007, we recruited 51 highly gualified professionals
from governmental entities and large state-owned enterprises, further strengthening the connection
with our clients. Five of these recruits assumed the position of vice presidents in five of our branches

and the rest were placed in other senior management positions.
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|' R TS HHEIZN CONTINUING EDUCATION AND TRAINING FOR OUR EMPLOYEES
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A focused and coherent investment in human capital remains one of the primary objectives at CDE,
where the training programmes are designed to foster self-development, The Bank has offered a

variety of training programmes to all levels of our staff members,

In #00F wnder the HRE mission of “Supporting the Mainstream Business, Serving Qur Emplovess and
Leading Business Innovation”, we have focused intensely on our training activities. Our employees
recelved more training than was originally planned 1 2002 at cost that was lower than the initial
budaet, reflecting the effect of a number of Innovative programs, including “Training Represents
Investrment” and “Growing with our Customers”. We achieved outstanding progress in a numbser of
training related areas such as efficiency in the use of training resources, the development of training
materials, the use of the internet and intranet, customer training, focused training on Business

Innovation, and English language and overseas training.

During 2002, the Bank provided overseas training to selected employees. To date, this program has
enabled 187 of our staff members study or work overseas with reputable international organisations
including the Intemational Monetary Fund, Harvard University and Standard & Poors, The selection
process for this programme has become more transparent during the year with the criteria and
objectives clearly established and communicated to our employess, Through this training programime
our employees have successfully brought back practical perspectives on best practice in intemational

financial institutions.

Recognising the importance of English as the international lanauage of business, we strive B0 help
our employees learn to speak and write proficient English. During 2002, we conducted tests of the
aptitude of our employees to speak and write English, Focsed on the results of these tests, we
developed a training centre at the Shanghai Foreign Language University and offered off-site Enalizh
training to our emplovess on a regular basis. The program was designed to improve the capabilities

of our emplovees to speak and write English, In 2002, 190 of our emplovees benefited from this course
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and their business English has improved significantly. The Bank is also in the process of identifying

other intemational training centres abroad where more effective training can be provided.

We also provide financial assistance Lo many of our staff members who seek to expand their knowledge
and skills through graduate or postgraduate studies. At the end of 2002, there are 58% of our employees
who are participating in various university degree programmes,

Training through e-leaming has become more popular within the Bank during 2002, We have found
that our employvess are moetivated through ready access to core financial and soft skills programmes,
To maintain human interaction for more effective learming, we will introduce blended learning,

combining classroom training with the convenience and power of e-learning in the near future,
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Box3: CDB'S COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION —POVERTY ALLEVIATION
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A5 & government-owned bank, CDE has always regarded its contributions to public welfare
services as a duty to which it is fundamentally bownd, In 2002, CDB continued its active

invedvement in poverty alleviation efforts in the poorer areas of China,

Starting in 1999, the Bank initiated a program of “Small Credit of RMB 2 Million” for five target
counties in Guangxi province, The aggregate level of these loans, intended to support a broad

range of poverty alleviation programs, reached RMB 14.52 million by the end of 2002.

Im 2002, the Bank donated RMB 1.0 million and BMB 1.2 million, respectively, to Guangxd and
Anhui provinces to build six Hope Primary Schools. In conmection with this effort Lo ensure
that the most needy children receive access to basic educational cpportunitées, our own Bank
staffl helped B students return to school through their voluntary donations. Throwghout our
Bank, our staff perform countless small acts of compassion like this, which truly define the

soul of our organization.

During the past year, the Bank has also contributed poverty alleviation funds to public welfare
projects, including RME 800,000 for flood control, read construction, neighborhocd and hospital
improvements. The Bank has always been alert to the real needs of the people in the poorer
areas of China and regularly oreanizes activities to foous public awarensss on helping the poor,
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Total assets as of the end of
2002 reached RMB1041.7
billion; total liabilities grew
to RMB 966.3 billion. The Bank
achieved net profits in 2002

of RMB 11.9 billion.




PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS @

%? iﬁ Ei if

L 13 5
EARRHhEE
ELiig

ERE

=8 Loon

A BRI

Wil L) ESAT 3338
W S0 BT R3O0

HitEE
BEFFRESTERE-
BOSHTERFRES (KTHR 8T ) 200251273 ANE~ A ERM20024

EHAAZAREREE. AESTRFARNEETEERLY, BINANEERERD
HEITERFRESIHERERRR,

BNHZESTBRENTTEHEMA (BERTRMD EN. BENERBNRETE
FEBSEFHES, HAERRIEEHBAREEHERANARIE. Wi IHES
BEFSFLETHMBEETHEMVBARBEIECHRENSE, T IFEER
HRERRZANSTREDNFEAEEGTHEDS. HENSHBERERABEARS
Wi, ERERNSEETHRNOETELRRT SHAKE.

BfMAH. Wl (AEHFHARU) KFEASHHRE ERTEANELRSE
BRTHOOEIIANBAMERARBGIEENEEMRANETRRAR,

ET?@&mﬁ*&hwﬁﬁpﬂ
Bk

2003E2F 250

Bugineis b ondersie (0 the regiseesd rams of Pricewsesoaseloopers Ching Limiis]. iroorponais] i Bemesda with Limiosd LiakiiTy.
Resgiswersd alireds ks Cleenadon Hom. 7 Cliosch Srest, Humikon, Bermids.

7 ANNUDAL RErorT 2002



ZEFERER
(RPN, EWNEEARTEOT

Fag
HAaxd
B PE

FEAEA 5
FREAH
FEBRE AR

BRI A ]
Hipmad A

ElE A

nEM% 14
EFReERESE 12
A=  §

g2 8

EHETARMEI S HRENER S

% Bx MELEL. TR




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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i 2002 2001 |
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Mt 2002 2001 |
16,693 14,738
12 {1,230) (4,078)
: 17
14 2,391 1,918
105 a7
192 1,071
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Report of the independent accountants

To the Management of China Development Bank

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of China Development Bank (the "Bank™)
as of 31 December 2002 and the related income and cash flow statements for the vear then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those
Standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
wivether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examming, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amaounts and disclosures i the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

In our opimon, the financial statements present fairly in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as of 31 December 2002 and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the year then ended in acoordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

23 February 2003
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

INMCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002
(ALl ameunts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)
Year anded 31
| MNotes 2002

Interest income 4 52,180
Interest expenses 4 (32,727
Met interest income 4 19,462
Fees and commission incame 5 1]
Fees and commission expansas (13
Met feos and commission incame 55
Dividend income & 1,83
Other operating incaome 43
Operating income 11,396
Lesses on investment securities 14 12,2M
Write back of prowision for loan losses 12 1,230
Other pperating expenses 7 13,542
Profit bafore tax 16,693
Incame tax expense B fd, 774
Met profit 11,919

The following motes form an integral part of these financial statem
Governar  Chen Yuan Head o
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MT BANK
R 2002
illicns of Bmb unless otherwise specified)
45 at 31 Decamber
. Motes 2002 2001
he Central Bank & 7, 154 4. 495
id 913 I, 02
der resale agreements G, 228 4,390
11 &7a4,. 477 730,041
13 100,000 100,000
14 34,949 35,583
15 1,039 1,643
14 4 56 6,834
17 8,185 6,234
1,041,711 891,247
"3 EQUITY
ks 1,874 703
1% 40,005 31078
stitutions 19 44,603 34,850
id E60, 543 739,142
1 19,285 11,603
46,3110 829,186
iz 49,030 47,443
134 134
: 13 946 543
rve i3 703 418
i4 24,568 13,338
73,401 61,881
OWHER™S EQUITY 1,041,711 891,247

form an integral part of these financial statements,
Head of Finance 5Shu liawei
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CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK

STATEMEMT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(ALl amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

tYear endad 31 December

Motes 2002 2001
Cash flows fromf(used in} oparating activities
Frofit bafore tas 16,693 14,736
Adjustments:
Write back of pravislen for loan losiesy 12 (1,230 4,078
Provision for doubtful receivables - 17
Provisian for investment impairment 14 1, 1,M&
Depreciation and amortization 105 a7
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 252 1,071
Amertization ef discount of dabt securitisy 615 354
Cach dividands receivad (1,831} 1,493
Met changes in:
Restricted balance with cther banks - 713
Securities purchased under resale agreements (4,838 (4,390
Loans to banks 1,447 8,938
Loans to customers {148,253} (3% T46|
Other assets i(1,430] 1Ra0)
Due Lo custamerns 7,927 1176
Deposite from other banks 1,11 £
Other liabilities B (647
Imeame tax paid (5,476 163%)
Met cash wsed in operating activities {131,337 (8% 453
Cash flews fromd{used in} investing activitles
Purchases of investmant securities {3871 {E£13)
Froceads from redemption ol investment securities B 126
Cash dividends received 1,831 1 A3%8
Purchases af fiked assets and other assetls {519} (EIE)
Met cash from investing activities 1,813 2,513
Cash flows from/|used in) financing activities
Procesds from barrowed funds and dabt securities 243,934 230,00
Rapaymants af borrowed funds and debt securities {114,297 (114,595
Procesds fram capital contributian 1,601 1,891
Met cash from financing activities 131,340 B, 997
Met Increase in cash and cash egquivalents 1,714 75
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11 6,370 6,295
Cash and cash equivalents at and af vear " &, 084 G, AT
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Interest received 51,075 44 957
Interast paid 133 012 (2% 461

The follewing notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Governor Chen Yuan

Tid I_ AXMUAL RorarT I602

Head of Finance

Shu Hawed



MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(all amaounts expressed in millions of Bmb unless athersise specified)

GENERAL INFORMATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

China Development Bank (the "Bank™), a whaolly state-owned development financial institution, was
established on 1 July 1994 in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC" or "China®). The address of

its registered office is Ho.29, Fuchengmenwai Street, Xicheng District, Beijing PRC.

The Bank's primary purpose is to foster the economic development of China through the provision
of long-term financing of key projects and initiatives supporting the Government's national economic
development plan and industry policies, The Bank's current principal activities include raising funds
to support its lending activities and extending loans in both Renminbi ("Rmb") and foreign currencies
to infrastructure, basic industry and pillar industry construction projects. This involves mobilizing
substantial financial resources, ncluding the ksuance of debentures denominated in Bmb and forefgn
currencies in the domestic and intemational capital markets; and borrowangs from foresgn govemments,
intemational financial institutions and foreign commercial banks. AL present, the Bank comducts its

business activities exclusively in the PRC.
At 31 December 2002, the Bank had 3,730 employees.

On 25 February 2003, the management authorized issuance of these financial statements.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted i the preparation of these financial statements are set

out below:
A. Basis of presentation

These financial statements are prepaned in accordance with Intemational Financial Beporting Standards.

|
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(Al smounts expressed i milliors of Bmb unless otherwise specified)

ACCOUNTING POLICIESICONT'D)

A, Basis of presentation/cont’d)

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by the

revaluation of available-for-sale investment securities and all derivative contracts.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates
are based on management”s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results ultimately

may differ from those estimates.

The Bank adopted 155 3% Financial Instroements: Becognition and Measurement in 2001, The financial

effects of adopting 1AS 3% were reported in the previows year®s financial statements.

B. Foreign currency translation
The Bank's reporting currency is Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC.

The Bank maintains separate books to acoount for 1ts foreign currency operations and transactions.
Income statements and cash Mlows of forefgn currency operations are translated into Bmb, the Bank's
reporting currency at average exchange rates for the year and the balance sheets are translated at

the year-emd exchamie rate as of the reporting date.

Forsign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transactions. Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the

translation of monetary assets and Liabilities denominated in foretan currencies are recognised in

AHMUAL REPGRT 2002




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(&Il amounts expressed in milliors of Bmb unless otherwise specified)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES(CONT'D)

B. Foreign currency translation{cont'd)

the incame statement.,
C. Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments including foreign exchange contracts, currency and interest swaps
and other derivative financial instruments are initially recognised in the balance sheet at cost
{including transaction costs) and subsequently are re-measured at their fair value. Fair values are
obtained from quoted market prices and discounted cash flow models as appropniate. Al derivatives
are carmed as other assets when fair value s positive and as other labilities when fair value 15

negative,

Derivative transactions are intended to provide effective economic hedges in accordance with the
Bank's risk management policies and directives, do not qualify for hedge accoumting under the related
specific rules in 145 39 and are therefore treated as derivatives held for non-hedging purposes with

changes in fair value reported as other operating expenses.

D. Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when
there i a legally enforceable right to set off the recosnised amaounts and there i an intention Lo

settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the lability simultaneously.
E. Interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognised in the income statement for all interest bearing

instruments an an accnal basis using the effective yield method. Interest income includes coupons

ANMUAL REFORT 20032
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MNOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(&Ll amounts expressed in millions of Bmb unless othersise specified)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES(CONT'D)

E. Interest income and expenses(cont'd)

eamed on fixed income investments and accrued discounts and premiums on discounted instruments.
Interest income is suspended and accrued interest is reversed, when loans become doubtful of
collection, when overdue by more than %0 days, or, when the borrower or securities” issuer defaults,

if earlier than 90 days. Such income 5 excluded from interest income until received.
F. Fees and commission income

Fees and commission are recognised on an accrual basis when eamed. Commission and fees arising
from negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of a transaction for a third party, such as the
purchase or sale of businesses, or Bsuance of secunties, are recognised on completion of the underlying

Lransaction.
G. Resale and repurchase agreements

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“resales”) and securities sold under agreements Lo
repurchase | repos”| are generally treated as collateralised financing transactions and are carried at

the amownts at which the securities were acquired or sold.

Interest earned on resale agreements and inberest incurred on repurchase agreements & recognised

as interest income and interest expenses, over the life of each agresment.
H. Loans and provisions for loan losses

Loans originated by the Bank by providing money directly to the borrower are categorized as loans

ariginated by the Bank and are carried at amortised cost.

ANMUAL REPORT 2002




MOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(&l amounts expressed in millions of Bmb unless stherwise specified)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES(CONT'D)

H. Loans and provisions for loan losses(cont'd)

All loans and advances are recognised when cash s advanced to borrowers. Loans are placed on none
accrual status if principal or interest is not likely to be paid in accordance with the terms of the

loan agreement, or when principal or interest is past due 90 days or more.

An allowance for loan losses s established if there 15 abjective evidence that the Bank will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the origmal contractual terms of the loan. The amount
of the provision is the difference between the carrving amount and the recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is estimated after taking into account the financial condition of the borrowers

and the amounts recoverable from guarantors and disposition of collateral.

The allowance for loan losses alse includes amounts related to unidentified losses where there is
evidence that probable losses are present in components of the loan portfolie at the balance sheet
date. These have been estimabed based upon historical experience of losses and reflecting the current

economic climabe in which the borrowers operate.

When a loan s uncollectible, it & written off against the related allowance for loan losses; subsequent
recoveries are credited to the provision for loan losses. If the amount of the impaimment subsequently
decreases due to an event occurring after the write-down, the release of the provision i credited

o allowance for loan losses,

ANMUAL REFORT 20032
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(&1l amounts expressed in millions of Bmb unless otherwise specified)

ACCOUNTING POLICIESICONT 'Dv)
I. Investment securities

The Bank classifies its investment securities into two categories: held-to-maturity and available-
for-sale assets. Debt securities with fixed maturity where management has both the intent and the
ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity. Investment securities intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices are classified as available-for-sale, Management

determines appropriate classification of its investments at the time of acquisition.,

Investment securities are initially recorded at cost. Available-for-sale investments are subsequently
re-measured at fair value based on quoted bid prices or amounts derived from cash flow models,
Fair values for unlisted equity securities are estimated using applicable pricefeamings or price/cash
flow ratios refined to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer, Unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in the fair value of investments classified as available-for-sale are recopnised
in equity net of income tax effect. Equity securities for which fair values cannot be measured reliably
are recognised at cost less impairment. When the securities are deposed of or impaired, the related
accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the income statement as gains and losses from
investment securities.

Held-to-maturity securities are carmied at amortised cost using the effective yield method, less any

provision for impairment,

An investment secunty is impaired if its carmying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount. The amount of the impainment loss for assets carried at amortised cost is calculated as

the difference between the assets’ cammying amount and the present value of expected future cash
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(ALl amounts expressed in millions of Amb unless otherwise specified)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES{CONT'D)
l. Investment securities(cont'd)

flows discounted at the financial instrument's original effective interest rate. By comparison, the
recoverable amount of an instrument measured at fair value is the present value of expected future

cash flows discounted at the current market rate of interest for a similar financial asset.

Interest earmed while holding westment securities s reported as intenest income. Dividend recetvables

are included separately in dividend income when a dividend is declared.

All regular way purchases and sales of investment securities are recognised at settlement date, All

other purchases and sales are recognised as dervative forward transactions until settiement.
J. Fixed assets
all fixed assets are stabed at historical cost less accumulated depreciatéon and impairment.

Depraciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of such assets to

their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 30 35 years
Office equipment 3 11 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Motor vehicles & years

Ho depreciation is provided against construction in progress,

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written
down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposal of fixed assets are determined
by reference to their carrying amount and are taken into account in determining operating profit.

Repairs and renewals are charged to the income statement when the expenditure 15 incurred.

AHMUAL REFORT 2002 | #2f
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(&Ll amounts expressed in millions of Amb unless stherwise specified)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES{CONT'D)
K. Dperating leases

The Bank entered inko varfous operaling lease agreements Lo rent its head office and branches” office
and facilities. The total payments made under operating leases are charged to the income statement

on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required
to be made to the lessor by way of penalty & recopnised as an expense in the pericd in which the
termination takes place.

L. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprse balances with less
than %0 days maturity from the date of acquisition including: cash and balance with the Central Bank

and amounts due from other banks.
M. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the cbligation can be made, Such

provisions are charged to current year income statement.
M. Employee benefits

The Bank participates in the defined contribution plans regulated by local govemments throughout

the country. The pension plans are generally funded by payments from employees and by the Bank.
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NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(&l ampaunts expressed in millions of Amb unlass otherwise specified|

ACCOUNTING POLICIES({CONT'D)
H. Employee benefits(cont’d)

The Bank's contributions to these pension plans are charged to the income statement in the period

to which they relate.
0. Deferred income taxes

Deferred income Lax is provided, using the lability method, on temporary differences arising betveen
the Lax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. The
current enacted tax rate of 33% at balance sheet date is used in the determination of deferred income

tax.

The principal temporary differences arise from allowance for loan losses, investment securities,
doubtfid recefvables and revaluation of available-for-sale investment securities and financial derivatives.
Deferred Lax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised, Deferred tax refated to fair
value re-measurement of available-for-sale investment securities is charged or credited directly to
equity, and is subsequently recognised in the income statement together with the deferred gam or

loss when the related investments are sold,

Incomse tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law in each jurisdiction s recognized as

an expense in the period in which profit arise.
P. Borrowed funds

Borrowed funds are recognised initially at cost, being their proceeds, net of transaction costs.

Subsequently borrowings are stated at amortised cost and any difference between net proceeds and

ANMUALL REFORT 2002
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(ALl amounis expressed in millicns of Bmb unless othersise speciliad)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES(CONT'D)
P. Borrowed fundscontd)

the redemplion value & recognised in the mcome statement over the peried of the borrowings using
the effective yvield method.

Q. Paid-in capital

As approved by the MOF and the Chinese tax authority, business tax paid by the Bank fs subsequently
refunded Lo the Bank in full. In accordance with instructions from the MOF, such financial subsidy
i5 recognised as a capital contribution in the year when the refund occurs, and such special tax refund

policy would be terminated once the paid-in capital reaches the registered capital of Rmb 50 billion.
R. Reclassifications

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current yvear's presentation.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
A. Strategy in using financial instruments

By its pature the Bank is engaged in the extensive use of financial instruments. The Bank raises funds
primarily by issuance of debts at both fixed and floating rates and for variows pericds and seeks to
earn above average interest margins by investing these funds in long-term infrastructure project
lending. While operating in China under the interest rate scheme regulated by the People's Bank of
China (the "PEOC", or the "Central Bank”), the Bank seeks to increase these margins by issuing long:

term bonds with different maturities and reducing the cost of fund as much as possible.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(Al amounts expressed in millices of BEmb unless oihersise specifbed)

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT(CONT D)
A, Strategy in using financial instruments(cont’d)

The Bank engages in derivatives transactions, which include currency forwards and swaps, interest
rate swaps, interest rate collars paimarily with its borrowers, In order to offset the potential risks
related to the derivative transactions entered into with its borrowers, the Bank often enters into
similar or substantially similar contracts with other financial institutions, The Bank does nol conduct
proprietary denvatives or securities trading activities. While certain of the Bank's derivative Uransactions
are intended to provide effective economic bedges, they do not meet the hedge accounting requirements
of |45 39. They are therefore accounted for as derivatives held for non-hedging purpose while changes

in fair value reported currently in income.

B. Credit risk

The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to
pay amounts in full when due, Credit risk is increased when counter parties are concentrated in
the same industries or gecgraphical regions, The Bank's lending activities are undertaken entirely

within China and concentrated in six targeted industries.

To manage its credit sk, the Bank appliss rigorous underwriting procedures to each loan application
and has developed a disciplined credit risk management process, Exposure to credit misk is managed
through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and potential Borrowers to meet interest and
capital repayment obligations. Exposure to credit risk & also managed in part by cbtaining collateral

and guaraniess,
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IMANCIAL STATEMENTS

NDED 31 DECEMBER 2002
Wiy of Rmb unless otheraise specifbed)

LHAGEMENT(CONT'D)

concentration for loans and advances to customers

1002 2001
Amount % Amount b
478,114 a1 158 370 32
187,001 i | 197,270 ]
228,736 Ik 156,511 11
1,150 - 4,597 1
B%6, 203 100 TEF 648 100

* risk concentration for loans and advances to customers

2002 001
Amount % Amaunt 5
125,224 36 194,034 ig
178,211 0 1E2,011 16
117,630 11 10% 000 14
115,636 13 731,992 10
43 217 5 18,992 4
16,288 1 32,163 4
22 510 3 23,578 3
13,155 1 14,585 2
53,102 6 54,695 7
2,150 - 4 597 1
B%6, 201 100 T57 648 100
to customers by purpose
2003 2001
Amount -4 Amount =
B,732 1 10,807 1
&rp 17 ar 730,580 Wi
tien loans 15,204 2 11,464 2
2,150 : 4,597 1

B9, 200 100 ToT, G448 100




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(Al amounts expressed in millices of BEmb unless oihersise specifbed)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT(CONT'D)
C. Market risk

The Bank Lakes on exposure to market risks, which arises from open positions in interest rate and
currency products, which are exposed to general and specific market movements. The Bank does
not have significant involverment in derivative financial instrument transactions. The Bank believes
that its exposure to market risk is not significant in light of the regulated interest rate environment
in the PRC and the Government®s current policy of maintaiming a stable exchange rate between the
Rmb and USD. There can be no assurance that these conditions will continue in the future, If these

conditions change, the Bank's exposure to market risk could increase,
0. Currency risk

The Bank conducts the majority of its buginesses in Rmby, with certain foreign currency transactions
in United State dollars ("USE™), Euros ("EURD™) and Japamese Yen ("JFY ). The exchanee rates of the
Emb with UsD, EURD and JPY respectively are set by the PBOC. In recent years, the PBOC has
maintained the exchange rate with USD in a very narrow band. There can be no assurance that this
practice will continue in the future, If this practice does not continue, the Bank's exposure o currency
risk would increase. The Bank s exposed to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing forsign currency
exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows, The management sets limits on the level of

exposure by currency, which are monitorad regularly,

The table below summaries the Bank's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the end
of the year. Included in the table are the Bank's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts in Rmb,

categorized by the original currency.
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ANCIAL STATEMENTS

NDED 31 DECEMBER 2002
illions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

AMAGEMENT (CONT'D)
d)
{ther
1 RMB Ush currancies Total
banks 2,233 16 18 g,247
10a,04a - - 100,044
819,407 14 9%% 20,07 874,477
34,452 497 - 34,949
12,515 1,197 106 14,018
54,407 4,709 20,1%5 1,041,711
41,80 7d = 41,879
4,020 15,233 15, 360 44 603
851,589 6 859 2,0%5 BE0, 543
18,001 T rl Tl 19,285
215,411 13,147 17,752 66,310
sithon &9, 196 3,561 2,641 75,401
etianal

17,760 - 17,760
287 742 11,658 - 30%,4040

a1
545,430 15,1533 1,324 H91,247
784,758 11,470 13,148 B1%, 386
sition £0,922 1,781 12,834 £1,881

1

17 418 - 2T 436
114,594 7,152 - 122,046




MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(ALl ampunts expressed in millions of Bmb unless otherwise specified)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT{CONT D)
E. Interest rate risk

The Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest
rates on it financial position and cash flows, Intersst margins may morease &6 a result of such changes
but may reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. Currently, interest
rates for loans and deposits within mainland China are set by the FEOC. The Bank operates its business
predominantly in China under the interest rate scheme regulated by the PEOC. It is normal practice
for the interest rates of both interest-bearing assets and liabilities to move in the same directions.
Consequently, the Bank's exposure to interest rate risk is not significant. However, there is no

guarantee that the PEQC will continue this practice in future,
according to the PBOC regulations the floor for loan interest rate can be set at 10% below the stipulated rates.

Liberalisation of the PBEOC regulations and practices related to the repulation of interest rates n

whina could increase the Bank's exposure to mberest rate risk,
F. Liquidity risk

The Bank is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources from current accoumts, maturng
deposits and debt securities in issue, loan draw downs, guarantees and other calls on cash settled
derivatives. The Bank does not maintain cash resources to meet all of these needs as experience
shows that a minimurm level of reinvestment of maturing funds can be predicted with a high Level
of certainty. The management sets Limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available
to meet such calls and on the minimum level of interbank and other borrowing facilities that should

be in place to cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand.

The table below analyses the assets and labilities of the Bank into relevant maturity groupings based

on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date,
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NOTES TO THE FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(Al amounis expressed in millicens of Bmb unless othersise specilled)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT{CONT' D)
F. Liquidity riskicont"d)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities of assets and liabilities are fundamental
to the management of the Bank. It is unusual for banks ever to be completely matched since business
transacted is often of uncertain terms and of different types. An unmatched position potentially

enhances profitability, but also increase the risk of losses.

Liguidity requirements Lo support calls under guarantees and letters of credit are considerably less
than the amounts under commitments because the Bank does not generally expect the third party
to draw funds under those agreements. The total outstanding contractual amownt of commitments
to extend credit does not necessarily represent future cash requirements, since many of these

commitments will expire or terminate without being funded,

G, Fair value of financial assets and labilities

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on relevant market imformation and
information about the various financial instruments. The faollowing methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instruments for which it 15 practicable to

estimate that value.

(1) Cash and balance with the Central Bank, Amounts due from other banks, Deposits from other

banks, Due to customers, Interest receivables and payables and Other liabilities

Given that maturities of these financial assets and liabilities are within one year, the carrying amount

approximates the fair value.
() Investment securities

The fair value of securities is based on quoted market price, if available. If a quoted market price
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MOTES TG THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

{BAL amounts expressed Imomiitions of Rmb unless otherwise specilied|

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT(CONT'D)
G. Fair value of financial assets and Habilities{cont'd)

is not available, fair value is estimated wing applicable price/eamings or pricefcash flow ratios
refined to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer. In some cases, where information 15 not

available to reliably estimate fair value, reference is made to costs.
{3] Loans and advances to austomers

The carrying ameunt of performing loans and advances to customers i a reasonable estimate of fair
value because interest rates are tied to the PBOC rate and are adjusted when the PBOC announces

interest rate changes.

The fair value of non-accrual loans is reported at book value, net of specific allowance for loan losses,
because it is assumed that management has allocated adequate allowance Tor loan losses to reflect
its net realizable value.,

(4] Borrowings from other institutions and debt securities
Fair value is based on discounted cash flows using current yields appropriate to the remaining
maturities.

The estimated fair value of the Bank's financial instruments, of which the respective carrying values

are different, at 31 December 2002 and 2001 is summarised as follows:

Carrwing Valug Fair Yalue

002 2001 2002 1001
Financial assets
Held-ta-maturity securities 497 148 507 245
Loans ard 477 F10.0632 BB3, 294 38,099
Financial liabilities
Barrowings from ather institutians 44,403 14 840 52,137 41,035
Debt securities in dssue &60, 543 719,142 B63, 704 741,784

ANNUAL REPORT 2002




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2002
(all amnounts exprossed in millions of Amb wless otherwise specified)

MET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income

Balances with the Cenktral Bank
Loans to customars

Cinda bonds

Others

Interest expenses

Due to custamers and banks
Borrowings fram other instituticns
Debt securities in issue

Het interast incame

FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME

Underwriting business

Others

DIVIDEND INCOME

Available-far-sale securities
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AMNCIAL STATEMENTS

ED 31 DECEMBER 2002
illicns of Amb unless ctherwise specified)

G EXPENSES
| 2002 2001 |
39 247
dential quarters 93 1,071
s marked-to-market [218) 144
192 B3
913 4
atian 105 a7
a7 &4
gos (NateZ. Q) 7,441 2,333
2461 260
3,542 o, 405
H5E
| 2002 2001 |
2,504 1,313
2,268 1,276
4,774 3,589

xpense differs from the statutary income tax for the following reasens:

| 2002 2001 |

16,693 14,734

of 33% (Z2001;33%) 4, 109 4,863

x:

me 124) (454}
me on Cinda bonds (741 (743}
nd ather cxpenses 92 207
40 {254}

4,774 3,589
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002
(&Il amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified |

CASH ANMD BALANCE WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

Cash on hand
Balance with the Central Bank
Included in cash and cash equivalents [Mated1)

Balance with the Central Bank iz all available for use in the Bank's day te da

DUE FROM OTHER BANKS

Flacement with other banks
Included in cash equivalents iMNate 11)

Restricted balances with other banks

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash amd cagh equivalents in the Cash Flow Statement cansists of the Tollowi

Cash and balance with the Contral Bank
Flacement with other banks
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ANCIAL STATEMENTS

DED 31 DECEMBER 2002
millions of Rmb unless otherwise specificd|

ANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

ns i5 as follows:

| 2002 2001 |

2,150 4,597

894,053 753,051

896,203 757,645

lasses 131,726) (37 586)
874,477 730,042

=50

| 2002 2001 |

27,584 11,984

i1,2300 14,078}

i4,983) (530}

153 210

21,724 27,584

nterest which has been reversed ameunted to Amb%8% million (31 Pecember
jand on an aggregate basis. The correspanding carrying amount of non-accrual
1,746 millian (31 December 2007: Rmb4,351 millian|.

ebt abligations issued by China Cinda Asset Management Company ("Cinda™,
non-performing Loans transferred to Cinda by the Bank. In accerdance with
defining the terms of this transaction between the Bank and Cinda, ceortain
with an aggregate carrying value of Emb100 billion were transferred to Cinda
exchange for the transfer of the nen-performing loans, Cinda issued the Bank
incipal amount of Rmb 100 billion and an interest rate of 2.25% per annum,
da can redesm the bond prior ta its stated maturity.

guara nteed a4 to the payment of principal By the MOF. The related interest
from business tax and income tax, and cannot be distributed until the Cinda
edeemed,
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

|&LL amounts expressed imomillions of Amb unless ctherwise specificed |

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

2002 2001

Avallable-for-sale sacuritles

Debt securities, at fair value

-Listed 40

Unlisted 100 -
Equity securities”, unlisted 34 512 15,3158
14,451 15,315

Haeld-to-maturity securitias
Cebr securitiss-unlisied, at cost 457 148
Total investment securities 14, 94% 315,583

*Upon the appraval of relevant autharities, the Bank has entered into debt to equity swap ("DES"|
transactions with certain of its barrowers, |n accordance with the agreements, the Bank transfers
all or part of loans principals outstanding together with interest receivables on and off balance sheet
as DES investrment to the borrowers,

These DES tramsactions were directed by the Chinese Government as a way to help the borrowers
restructure thair fimamcial pesitions. Certain af the agreaments between the Bank and Bafrawers
require, subject to Government approval, the borrowers to repurchase the related aguity securities
fram the Bank within a specificd period of time.

Unlisted equity securities are carried at cost less any provision for impairment, These securities
wers racelved in cannectian with the abave mentianed Gavernment directed DES transactians, In this
regard, the Government retained certain rights and imposed certain restrictions related to the sale
af these securities, The scope of these rights and restrictions is broad, and it is nat possible to
predict haw the Gevernment will exert 1ts control in this regard, which will affect the value of these
securities. dccordingly, the Bank is unable to reliably measure their fair value,

Tha mavement in investment securities may be summarized as follows:

Avalable-for-sale  Held-to-maturity Total |
At 1 Januvary 2002 35,235 248 35,583
Ldditians £,081 582 3,343
Disposals (sale and redemption| (1,253 1335 i1, 586)
Loss en dispesal®™ 1139} 3 1139
Impairment in walue®* (1,252 - {2,252)
At 31 December 2002 34,457 457 34,949

“hpgregata lass on eguity securities charged to the income statement amounted to Rmb2, 397 million,

At 31 December 2002, there were no gross unrealised gains on lesses related to the debt securities
classified as available for sale included as a component of eguity.

AHMUALL REFORT 20032
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JANCIAL STATEMENTS

' ED 31 DECEMBER 20032
in miklicns of Bmb unless otherwise specified)

| 7002 2001 |
2,070 1,145
on (242) 1166}
1,828 299
n G453
2,039 1.4641
sed assets is comprised of the follawing:
Leasehald Office Matar
Buildings  imarovements equipment  wehicles Total
B47 ir 198 iny 1,165
B2 10 1 43 951
136 (i i1 i 144}
1,637 io 262 151 1,070
3
58 ¥ 70 k) 166
k1] E] 34 i7 ge
12 i 1 : 1ay
B4 L] 105 44 241
1,591 15 157 105 1,818
789 ] 128 T4 P95
iE TAX
eferred income tax asset is as follows:
[ 2002 1001 |
6,834 .76
# 12,208} 1,276)
- 66|

4,364 6,034




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002
|4 amounts expressed in milleons of Bmb unless otherwise specified |

16 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONT'D)

Deferred income tax assets and liakilities are attributable to the following i

Deferred income tax assets (liabilities)

Fravision for loan losses

Frovisien for equity securities impairment

Loss on disposal of staff gquarters

Fravisien for doubtful receivables

GainfiLessh on derivatives marked -to-market

Temparary difference in capitalization of
transaction cost on issuance of bends

Temparary differance in net interest income

Othars

The deferred tax charge in the income statement comprises the following

Fravisicn far loan losses

Fravisien for investment securities impairment
Lass an disposal of staff quarters

Fravisien far daubtful receivables

Gain/iLess) on derivatives marked -to-market
Temparary difference in net interest income
Other temporary differences
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INANCIAL STATEMEMNTS
DED 31 DECEMBER 2002

illicns of Rmb unless othersise specitied)

2002 2001 |

inda bonds 3,046 2,146
eceivables 1,673 1,239
costs for debt securities in issue 1,583 1,345
ELruments (Mote 25) AA0 443
disposal of equity securities el -
240 43

8,185 £, 136

interest receivable an Cinda bonds smeunted to Rmb, 454 million (2001
MOF has issued instructions to the Bank reguiring the latter to continue with
on Cinda bonds, The aggregate amaunt af interest acorued and received in

chase to 31 December 2002 amounted to Embé 819 million and Rmb3, 773

RS
| 2002 2001 |
19,591 31,684
411 365
1 7
40,005 32,078
DM OTHER INSTITUTIONS
| 2002 2001 |
1 banks - buyers' eredit ig, 606 19,964
€ banks 4,000 1,351
oreign commercial banks 1,750 2.477
FOVETMMERLS 1,359 40
dministration of Foreign Exchange T4 145

44,601 34,860
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HNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2002
(&Ll amounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified |

OTHER LIABILITIES

Acorued interest exponses

Income tax payable

Derivative financial instruments |Nate 15
Other payables

Others

PAID-IN CAPITAL

AL T January

Capttal comtributian®
Transfer out™

At 1 December

*The registerad capital of the Bank is Rmb30 billian, all of which is required
the MOF. The majority of the reglstered capital has been contributed thro
established by the MOF, The remaining amount has been and is ta be made th
in the farm of business tax refunds, The MOF has directed the Banks to treatt
capital.

**The transfer out of Emb4, 760 millien represents of the separation of State D
Corp., at book value, from the Bank, under the direction of the MOF during

SURPLUS AND WELFARE RESERVES

Upon the approval by the MOF in 2002, the Bank allocated 25% of its profi
reserve and a welfare reserve, in cach case, based on its statutery financial st
ended 31 December 2001, Once approved by the MOF, the surplus reserve can b
lasses or transferred to registered capital, whereas the welfare reserve can
expenditures related to employes wellare,

Ma profit appropriation to these reserves for the year ended 17 December
the prafit apprapriation plan s pending approval by the MOF.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002

(&l amounts edpressed in millions of BEmb unless obberwise specilied)

RETAIMED EARNINGS ADJUSTMENT

Acconding to the MOF's approval, the surplus and welfare reserves ware believed to be underapprapriated by Bmbi 1§
millian durirg the previous years and the Bark was instructad to transfer this amount. from retained earnings to surplus

and welfare reservas,

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMEMNTS
The following derivative instruments are utilised by the Bank for other than hedging purposes:
Currency forwards represent commitments to purchasefsell foreign exchanges.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows for another,
Swaps result in an economic exchange of currencies or interest rates {for example, fixed rate for
floating rate) or a combdnation of all these [i.e. cross-currency interest rate swaps). The Bank's credit
risk represents the potential cost to replace the swap contracts if counter parties fail to perform
their abligations. This risk is monitored on an ongoing basis with reference to the cument fair value,
the noticnal amount of the contracts and the liquidity of the market, To control the level of credit

risk taken, the Bank assesses counter parties using the same technigues as for its lending activities,

Collars are combinations of interest rate caps and floors to specify a range in which interest rates
will fluctuate. The effect of the combination is to confine interest rate payments to a range bounded

by the strike price of the cap and floor options.

The noticnal amownts of certain types of financial instruments provide a basis for comparison with
mstruments recognised on the balance sheet but do not necessanly indicate the amounts of future cash
flows involved or the current fair value of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Bank's
exposure to credit or price risks, The dervative instruments becoms favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) a5 a result of fluctuations in market interest rates or foresan exchange rates relative to their
terms. The aparegate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can fluctuate sianificantly

from time to time, The fair values of derivative instruments hedd are set out in the following table,

AWMUAL REPORT 2002




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2002
(41l smounts expressed in millions of Rmb unless otherwise specified)

DERIVATIVE FINAHCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Lontract/motional
amount
As at 31 December 2002
Foreign exchange derivatives
Currency forwards 9.843
CUrTency swaps 3,215
Interest rate derivatives
Callars 2,931
Interest rate swaps 3708
Total derlvative assets/liabilitles
used far non-hedging purposes
As at 31 December 2001
Foreign exchange derivatives
Currency forwards 11,179
Currency swaps 713
Interest rate derlvativas
Cellars 9,932
interest rate swaps 3813

Total derivative assets/liabilities
wsed for non-hedging purposas

The previous table provides a detailed breakdown of the contractual or nao
fair waluwas of the Bank's derivative financial instrumants outstanding at wear
eomprising feraign exchange and interest rate derivatives allew the Bank and |
modify or reduce their foreign exchange and interest rate rishs.

The bank mostly undertakes its transactions in foreign exchange and inter
ather fimancial institutions. Management has established notional limits of the
parties, industry sectors and countries, Actual credit exposures and Limits
and contralled by management.
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ANCIAL STATEMENTS

MDED 31 DECEMBER 2002
millices of Rmb unless atheraise specifled)

.NEFIT OBLIGATIONS

25 in various defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised
pvincial governments under which it is required to make monthly
se plans at rates ranging from 19% to 19% of the employees” basic
icable calculating basis in each jurisdiction for the relevant periods.
as no additional significant cost for the payment of retirement
=ment benefits of employees other than the monthly contributions
e Bank's contributions to these pension plans are charged to the
the year to which they relate. Expenses incurred by the Bank in
retirement benefit plans amounted to Rmb25 million and Rmb29

of 2002 and 2001 respectively.




27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Commitments to extand credit:
Letters of guarantes

Letters of credit issued

Bank drafts issued

Operating lease commitments:

Future minimum lease payments on operating
leazes are summarised as follows:

Within one year
Betwean ane and five years
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ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

ARFAMTETARH
. #EEERILTIORFT
(BEd#) R RELE.

The head office of China De-
velopment Bank consists of 24
departments, with 30 domestic
branches [Banking Department},
and & representative offices.
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TR T SHEMYANG BRANCH

=t R e O e A L
addi Ho 109, Qingniandajie, Shenyan
Wif (Tel)s (024) 22953502

&7 (Faxj: (024) 22053374

LS (ipls 110014

AT DALIAH BRANCH

R AEFR LR

#dd: Hou&, Zhangshan Flaza, Thongshan Districe, Dalian
AL (Tellz a1} 2a10e18

AR (Faxp: (0417] 2611839

5 (Jip): 115001

EBT CHANGEHUN BRANCH

i et EREAEIS

&dd: Hi,3, Dargrninzhudajie, Chargehun
QL (Tel): (0431} 8922805

%R (Fax): (0431) 8972827

i (Tip): 130061

ERIRHIT HARBIN BRANCH

B EERT AR LA
Add: Houk-1, Wenfujie, Harbin
HIE (Tel): (045112663101

deh (Fax): (0451) 2663130
Bl (Zip): 150040

EB4HT SHANGHA BRANCH

B EREHENES0EREAREGER. M 15, 36
aldh: F33-34, M. 500, Pudorenanlu, CDB Plara, Sharhai
LIS (Tel): (021]38764999

o f (Fax): (021)5886165%

s (Tip): 200120




HIBTAHT HANJING BRAHCH

fall- gt 188

Audd: Mo, 188, Guangzhouly, Hanjing
quif (Telj: (025) 3276222

i (Fax): (0253276204

N (Tiph: 290024

BT HARGZHOU BRAHCH

e doe e E 0

Agdd: Mo, 108, Huancheng Xi Lu, Hangzhou
i (el (0571 85786088

iR (Fax)z (O5T1) BS78E094

5 (Tiph: 110006

SEGHT HEFEI BRANCH

i FRY¥SETRLUEIEEEE

Add: F5, Mo, 18, Meishan Strest, Helei
il (Ted): (0551) 2218503

fi @ (Fax): [0551) 2218512

i (Tip): 230022

il Wb 33 R 154

Add: 154 Floor, Insurance Plazs, Ha.213, Wusil, Furhou
§E (Ted): [0S91) TE58464

& (Fax): (0591) 7092294

i (Tip): 150003

FHAT MMAN BRANCH

Bl LUEFHOS BELAM ELSAEMIE
Ackd: F3-11, Mo, -1, Maarshandu, Shandons Marsion, Jinan
fiE (Ted): (0531) 5198100

fi@ (Fax): (05317 5198282

B (Tiph: 250002

RUT SHEMDEM BRANCH

Bl EETEnSREERALE
Add:international Sclence and Technology Plaza,
snernanziwonglu, Shenzhen

gif (Tedj: (O7S5) 83760356

fh3 (Faxi: 0755 83760185

EM (Tiph 518033

TEW 1T THERGZHOU

Hil SMvESRRSs
Adel: Mo, B2 Fengeha
WiF (Telj: §0371) 5714
%0 (Faxj: {0371} 571
=% {Zip): 450008

EiR4r{T WUHAN R

Hib: ZETLAEF
Adel: F10, linjin Ga
B Telp: @027} 8
&R (Faxk (027) 87305
Fi (Tip): 430071

Adel: Mo, 5 Manyilu,
HIE (Tel): {0791) 6262
R (Fax: (0791)
s (Zipl: 330044

MEST CHEMGDU

Fadl BT A E R
Adel: Mo, 47, Rermin
5 (Tel): 028) B5248
%A (Faxy: (D28} 85248
Ei (Tip): 610041

W17 GUANGZHOU

il rdE SRR
Add: 154 Foreign Trad
iE (Tel): {020} 38807
%A [Fax: 020} 38809
Sl (Zipk: 510620
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BT HUMMERG BRANCH

ELETAE BE: EMTEREISES
Fushangshangwu Plaza, Guivang  &ddi He 155, Dorglengailu, Kunming
Uil (Telie (03711 3634164
41§ ¢Fax): [OBT1) 3634004

il (Zip): 650031
BT 0N BRARCH
4 LE hE: ERhRi-mSErFERTAE
alan Mansian F23, Hannirg Add: e 2 Gaakingli, COE Plaza, Xi*an

415 (Tel)s (0F9) TeabsTa
AR (Fax): 039) 7640521
g (Ziph: T10075

AT LANTHOU BRANCH

HAE—. =& el 2k ER50rY

anyare Mansion F1-2, Haflou Acld: M. 507, Binhe Donglu, Lanshou
HUIE (Tel): [0931) BB54771

R (Fax): (0931) BB16350

£k (Tip): 730030
H SRAFAHT UBLMO) BRANCH
fHeEE M SREFTEAE-25E

wsi Plaza, Changeing Acldt Mi.2-25, Donglenglu, Urumagi

UL (Ted): (0991) 2335001
R (Fax): (0991) 2335002
S5 (Tip): 830002

PR DI HOMG KONG REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

hEAESE A B B S SRl — 33/ 1307- 1308
CB Dianli Branch Building, Xining  Add: Suite 1307-3308 33/F One International Finance
Conter, 1 Harbour View Strest, Central, Hong Konsg
HUIE (Tel]: [«852) 28016218

R (Fax): [+B52) 25304083

L Fd, Yinchuan
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